FILED SID J. WHITE

JUL 10 1995

CLERK, SOPREME COURT

Officief Deputy Clerk

By .

SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 85,880

L.T. CASE NO.: 94-0450-CA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ET AL.,

Appellants,

vs.

BRUCE MILLENDER, ET AL.,

Appellees.

FLORIDA CONSERVATION ASSOCIATION'S INITIAL BRIEF

Terry L. McCollough TERRY L. McCOLLOUGH, P.A. Florida Bar No. 562361 538 East Washington Street Orlando, FL 32801 (407) 420-9182

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This case comes to this Court on appeal from the Final Declaratory Judgment of the Second Judicial Circuit, Franklin County, P. Kevin Davey, Judge, rendered on May 11, 1995. (R. 569-579) Following the filing of timely notices of appeal by Appellants, and in response to Motions by Appellants requesting Certification pursuant to Rule 9.125, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, this matter was certified to this Court by the First District Court of Appeal as one involving a question of great public importance. This Court, by an order dated June 20, 1995, has accepted jurisdiction.

The parties will be referred to as follows. Appellees, collectively as Appellees and individually as, Bruce Millender - Millender; Ronald Fred Crum - Crum; Timmy McLain - McLain, Appellants, State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection and its division, Florida Marine Patrol - DEP; Florida Marine Fisheries Commission - MFC and Florida Conservation Association - FCA. The record in the trial court will be cited as (R. ____) referring to page numbers. References to the transcript of the trial on 3/24/95 will be cited as (T. ____) referring to page numbers.

Appellees filed this declaratory judgment action seeking a declaration of the meaning of certain provisions of Article X, Section 16 of the Florida Constitution. (R. 2-10) This provision of the Florida Constitution is an amendment resulting from the approval, by the voters of Florida, of an initiative petition placed on the November 1994 general election ballot. (R. 570) The Appellees are all involved in the shrimp fishing trade in the Florida Panhandle and sought a determination as to whether a certain shrimp trawl, manufactured to their specifications, complies with the restrictions

effective July 1, 1995 under the cited Constitutional provision. (R. 2-10)

Appellees contracted with Mr. Buford Golden, a professional net maker, to manufacture a specific net, to certain specifications, using a predetermined amount of raw netting material. (T. 128) Having created the resulting net, they have contended that it complies with the restrictions of Article X, Section 16. The trial court, in determining that the "Crum net" as it was referred to in the trial proceeding, did in fact comply with the applicable restrictions, construed certain provisions of Article X, Section 16. Specifically, it construed portions of Article X, Section 16(b)(2) and (c)(2). (R. 574) In making these constructions, the trial court made certain factual determinations. It determined that the intent of the voters, in enacting the subject Section, was to allow commercially feasible shrimp netting operations within the strictures of the Section. (R. 576) It determined that the language of the Section that imposed maximum square footage limits on shrimp trawls should be interpreted to include and contemplate specific measurement methods not set forth in the Section. (R. 577) Finally, it determined that a particular and specific method of measurement should be used to determine compliance with the Section. (R. 577)

The trial testimony shows that the shrimp fishing industry and the netting manufacturers use a common method to measure shrimp trawls and that the Appellees themselves have uniformly used the same method to measure shrimp trawl nets. (T. 37, 43, 54, 55, 56, 59, 73, 83, 87, 118, 120, 121, 157) The evidence at trial shows that the method used by the trial court in determining that the Crum net is legal under Article X, Section 16, is different than that used by the Appellees themselves. (R. 577)

The trial record shows that shrimp trawls are constructed from multiple sections of raw netting material which is cut into sections of various size and shape and then sewn together to form a trawl. (T. 122-125) The shape and size of particular trawls varies but all are generally shaped to form a truncated cone. In fact, upon completion, a shrimp trawl looks most like an elongated sock. It is "fished" by being towed through the ocean, close to the sea bottom, with the shrimp being funneled through the open "mouth" of the net and being captured in the closed end or "bag" of the net. (R. 571) In between the mouth and the bag are placed turtle excluded devices (TED's) which are essentially trapdoors to allow the escape or exclusion of sea turtles captured by the nets. (T. 120-122)

The net in question is undoubtedly a trawl net. (R. 572) The Constitutional Section in question dictates the method of measuring the circumference of such nets. The sole material issue in dispute in the trial proceeding is the proper method of measuring the length of shrimp trawls in general and the Crum net in particular. The trial court heard testimony as to the proper method of measurement of such nets. There was no dispute as the proper method of measuring the opening or circumference of the net. In its Final Judgment, the trial court applied a specific method of measurement, thereby determining that there was a specific method intended and required by the language of Article X, Section 16. The trial court then applied the method it had determined was proper to the Crum net and thus, determined that the Crum net fell within the restrictions of the Section and was, therefore, lawful for use after July 1, 1995. (R. 578)

At the trial, three different methods of measurement were advocated by the parties as being correct. In reaching its determination, the trial court rejected all three methods and crafted a different one. (R. 569-577) It determined that any contrary construction or the adoption of one of the three methods argued by the parties would have the result of rendering portions of the Section "nugatory" or, alternatively, the banning commercially feasible shrimp fishing in the inshore and nearshore

waters of Florida. The issue of commercial feasibility was raised by the trial court and not by the parties. (R. 466-522) The application of this requirement was a material factor in the trial court's determination.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Florida Conservation Association contends by this appeal, that the trial court erred in considering commercial feasibility and further erred in its determination of the common methods of measurement used in the netting industry and thereby erred in its determination that the Crum net was lawful for use under Article X, Section 16. Measured by either of the two methods proposed by Appellants, the net is in excess of the maximum limitations of the section and is not lawful for use after July 1, 1995. The FCA asks by its appeal that this court reverse the trial court and determine that the net is unlawful and further, determine that the correct method of net length measurement is by the stretched mesh method as intended by Article X, Section 16 of the Florida Constitution. Lastly, the trial court erred in not allowing FCA to present or examine witnesses. If reversed for a new trial, it should be with directions that presentation and examination of witnesses be allowed.

I. <u>THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS CALCULATION OF NET SIZES</u>

The essential issue in this case at trial was a determination of the method of measurement to be used in determining any trawl net's compliance with Article X, Section 16 of the Florida Constitution. In reaching its determination, the trial court examined the language of the Amendment, examined the evidence adduced at trial and made certain assumptions regarding the intent of the voters who enacted Article X, Section 16. In so doing, the trial court made two errors. First, it assumed that the intent of the voters was to create a constitutional provision which limited net fishing, but only to the extent that commercially feasible fishing was still available within those limits. Second, the trial court misinterpreted the operative language of the Amendment and the evidence at trial relating to that language. The ultimate result of the court's errors is a net measurement formula which allows use of shrimp trawls which are nearly double the size actually allowed under Article X, Section 16. The nature of these errors are explained below.

A. The Trial Court Improperly Considered Commercial Feasibility

The issue of commercial feasibility of the subject net and those allowed within the Amendment generally, was first raised <u>by the Court</u> during the argument on the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by MFC. (R. 466-522) Neither the Complaint in this case nor any Answer by a Defendant or Intervenor raises or mentions this issue. At the Summary Judgment hearing, where the trial court set forth the issues it thought were proper for trial, this aspect surfaced for the first time. It is improper for the trial court to, sua sponte, raise or insert an issue not raised by the parties.

Rule 1.510, <u>Florida Rules of Civil Procedure</u>, requires that any summary judgment of the Court or its determination of the issues remaining for trial be determined ". . .by examining the pleadings and the evidence before it and by interrogating counsel. . ." <u>Rule 1.510(d)</u> The issue pleadings of the parties herein do not raise this issue. Accordingly, it was not appropriate for inclusion in the court's determination. <u>Allstate Insurance Company v. Flickingen</u>, 322 So. 2d 638 (Fla. 3d DCA 1975)

"An issue that has not been framed by the pleadings, noticed for hearing, or litigated by the parties is not a proper issue for the court's determination. <u>Cortina v. Cortina</u>, 98 So. 2d 334 (Fla. 1957); <u>State</u> v. Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services, Office of Child <u>Support Enforcement v. McNabb</u>, 501 So. 2d 709 (Fla. 2d DCA 1987); <u>Hart v. Hart</u>, 458 So. 2d 815 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984); <u>Fickle v.</u> <u>Adkins</u>, 394 So. 2d 461 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981)"

Gordon v. Gordon, 543 So. 2d 428, 429 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989).

"We hold again that the issues in a cause are made solely by the pleadings and that the function of a motion for summary judgment is merely to determine if the respective parties can produce sufficient evidence in support of the operative issues made in the pleadings to require a trial to determine who shall prevail . . .

The science of pleading is considerably less exacting and much simpler than in the days when Professor Crandall taught the intra caries of Stephen's Rules of Pleadings. Nevertheless, pleadings under present rules are intended to serve the same purpose. This purpose is to . . . present, define and narrow the issues, and to form the foundation of, and to limit, the proof to be submitted at trial 71 C.J.S. Pleading Section 1.

Hare Properties, Inc. V. Slack, 159 So. 2d 236, 239 (Fla. 1963).

Under existing rules the only instance in which legal issues not raised is the pleadings may be tried and decided is where the issue, although not pled, is tried by consent of the parties.

<u>Id</u> at 239.

No Defendant or intervenor consented to the trial of the issue of commercial feasibility of

the nets comporting with Article X, Section 16.

The magnitude of this error is clear when the Final Declaratory Judgment is reviewed. The

trial court's determination on the issue of commercial feasibility became the lynchpin of its decision.

The elimination of this issue would dramatically after the Final Judgment. The judgment of the trial

court should be reserved on this basis.

B. The Nets Permitted under Article X, Section 16 are Commercially Viable

At trial, substantial evidence was elicited from both sides regarding the commercial feasibility of the Crum net vis a vis the Appellees. The Defendants presented evidence in opposition to that of the Plaintiffs without waiving their objection on this issue. FCA was nearly totally barred

from presenting evidence or examining witnesses.¹ This issue figured significantly in the decision

process of the trial court, as shown by the language of the Final Declaratory Judgment.

"Finally, the Court finds additional support for the interpretations and determinations herein. Unquestionably, the clear intent of this amendment to Article X is to limit not prohibit commercial fishing by trawl. While Defendants objected to the introduction of evidence demonstrating the impracticality or commercial unfeasibility of the small nets which they contend are mandated by the amendment, this evidence was legally relevant to the issues raised in this action. The "Golden-Crum" net represents a significant reduction in size of trawl net historically used by Florida's shrimpers. Such a reduction is clearly intended by the amendment to Article X. There is however, no evidence of an intent by the people of Florida in adopting this amendment to functionally prohibit shrimp trawling in the near shore and inshore waters of the State by rendering it commercially unfeasible. The Court likewise finds no evidence of an intent by proponents of this amendment to prohibit shrimp trawling. If such a result were intended, then the ballot, title and summary approved by the Supreme Court were facially and constitutionally defective." (footnotes omitted)

Final Declaratory Judgment. (R. 576-577)

The trial court's error in arriving at this conclusion is obvious. The language of Article X, Section 16 contains no reference to commercial or non-commercial operations. The specific intent of the amendment is set forth in subsection (a) which states "the marine resources of the State of Florida belong to all of the people of the State and should be conserved and managed for the benefit of the State, its people, and future generation. To this end, the people hereby enact limitations on marine net fishing in Florida waters to protect saltwater fin fish, shell fish, and other marine animals from unnecessary killing, overfishing and waste." While the court concluded that the intent of the

¹ The trial court's determination to not allow FCA and other intervenors to examine or present witnesses and the resulting error are discussed in detail later in this brief.

voters was to not eliminate commercial shrimping in the inshore and nearshore waters given the evidence adduced at trial, such a conclusion is suspect at best. The language of the amendment puts a strict and specific limitation on shrimp trawls and all other nets excepting gill nets and entangling nets, permitting only those containing 500 square feet of mesh area or less. Gill and entangling nets of all sizes are prohibited. Clearly, that type of commercial net fishing is prohibited. The testimony at trial makes any determination about the commercial feasibility of a particular net speculative at best.

The testimony at trial related to the use of particular nets on vessels of a particular size and assuming catches of certain volumes of shrimp. Other testimony indicated that the actual commercial benefit to be derived from the use of any particular net involves multiple variables; the weather, the season, environmental factors affecting shrimp populations, topography of the marine area in which shrimp are fished for, and the efficiency of the given vessel and commercial operation which employs the net and event, the type of shrimp being sought. Given the tremendous number of variables and their widely ranging affects, a conclusion and assumption that the voters intended not to eliminate commercially viable shrimp fishing operations within the framework of the amendment, leads to a very dangerous method of construing the language of the Florida Constitution. Specifically, it assumes that a shrimp trawl of 500 square feet of mesh area will always be viable for commercial shrimp fishing operations. Alternatively, if no shrimp trawl of 500 feet or less is commercially viable, then how is the trial court's conclusion supportable? No testimony adduced at trial supports this conclusion. Indeed, the Plaintiffs were uniform in their testimony that a shrimp trawl of 500 square feet of mesh area, measured by the methods proposed by Defendants and intervenor, FCA, would not be commercial viable in their individual shrimp operations. This

is particularly troubling when the evidence shows that the method proposed at trial by FCA is the very one that has been in common usage by both those in the shrimp fishing industry, including Appellees, and the State of Florida in its regulatory activities for many, many years. If the trial court's conclusion that commercial shrimp fishing operations were not intended to be barred by the amendment, and FCA's position with regard to the net measurement method are both correct, an irretrievable conflict exists between those two positions. The trial court concluded that such a conflict would mean that the ballot summary language approved this Court² would in such an instance be defective. Interestingly, again, no such argument was raised by any party in the trial court. Once again, the trial court inserted an issue for the first time in its final judgment which was neither argued by the parties nor as to which any evidence was presented at the trial.

The magnitude of the trial court's error in proceeding upon this assumption is obvious. The trial court's Final Declaratory Judgment may be summarized as saying that since commercially feasible shrimp fishing must be allowed in the wake of Article X, Section 16's adoption, and since the net measurement methods proposed by Defendants would result in nets which are, by the court's definition not commercially viable, then Defendants' net measurement methods must be incorrect. Such a conclusion is unsupported in law and in fact contradicted by the evidence presented at trial.

Assuming that commercial viability is to be considered on its merits, the evidence at trail showed that nets of the size permitted after July 1, 1995 are already in use in the area of the State fished by Plaintiffs. Lt Whaley of the Florida Marine Patrol testified to witnessing their use. (T. 258) Appellees contention is that their current shrimping operations are set up to use nets of certain

²Advisory Opinion--Limited Marine Fishing, 620 So. 2d 997 (Fla. 1993).

size and configuration and that a substantial change will impact, both immediately or permanently, their profitability. Assuming that this is true, there are many alternatives. First, the net restriction is only for inshore and nearshore waters. Fishing further offshore is not restricted by Article X, Section 16. Use of more economical boats will also improve short term commercial results.

In summary, the trial court by concluding the commercial viability was contemplated by the voters and then measuring the extent of such viability by the circumstances of the three Appellees, has made their circumstances the bright line for all how use trawls in Florida inshore and nearshore waters. Following the Court's reasoning leads to arbitrary results. It suggests that as time passes and factors change, the standard for measurement must change too <u>or</u> the amendment was somehow defective in the first instance. No legal authority was cited by the court or any party in support of such a result. It is plain error and requires a reversal of the trial court's ruling.

II. <u>THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN NOT EMPLOYING THE STRETCHED MESH</u> <u>METHOD OF MEASUREMENT</u>.

The task squarely presented to the trial court during the trial was the interpretation of portions of the language in Article X, Section 16(c)(2). Two sentences within that paragraph required the Court's attention. Specifically, the first sentence of (c)(2) which states "mesh area' of a net means the total area of netting with the meshes open to comprise the maximum square footage." Additionally, the fourth sentence of that paragraph which states: "trawls and other bag type nets shall be calculated as a cone using the maximum circumference of the net mouth to derive the radius, and the maximum length from the net mouth to the tail end of the net to derive the slant height."

In its opinion the trial court considered only a <u>part</u> of the definitional language defining "mesh area." The entire provision and not just isolated phrases must be interpreted. <u>State ex. rel.</u>

<u>City of Casselberry v. Mager</u>, 356 So. 2d 267 (Fla. 1978). Each part must be construed so as to give a reasonable and harmonious result. <u>Ozark Corp. V. Pattishall</u>, 185 So. 333, 135 Fla. 610 (Fla. 1939); <u>Snively Goves v. Mayo</u>, 184 So. 839, 135 Fla. 300 (Fla. 1939). The omission, by the trial court, of the remainder of the sentence is material.

The sentence shows an intent of the Section to measure mesh area so as to maximize the resulting "area" calculation of a given net's measurement. Section 16 then goes forward to require the use of standard mathematical formulas in making such calculations. When dealing with rectangular nets such as gill nets, the result is obvious. The net is to be stretched to its maximum length and width and the measured. The result is to attribute to any given net the maximum square footage possible.

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