## SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

08-31-95

SID J. WHITE

FILED

JUL 81 1995

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

By\_

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, et al

APPELLANTS,

vs.

CASE NO. 85,880

lst DCA Case No. 95-1757

BRUCE MILLENDER, et al.,

APPELLEES.

APPEAL OF A CERTIFIED JUDGMENT FROM THE TRIAL COURT

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEES

J. PATRICK FLOYD ATTORNEY

J. PATRICK FLOYD, P.A. 408 LONG AVENUE P.O. DRAWER 950 FLA. BAR NO. 257001 PORT ST. JOE, FL 32456 (904) 227-7413

#

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

- 478.69 (square feet of mesh areax(a:<br/>contained in the<br/>trawl at open position)x
- 953.4 (square feet produced by the formula for the lateral surface area of the cone as suggested by Defendants)
- x (area actually contained in net in open mesh

position when the formulated mesh area is reduced to 500 square feet)

500 (the 500 square feet) that the net is reduced to in order to meet the f o r m u l a limitation of 500 square feet)

X = 251.15 square feet
[R. 65:1-7; 153:1-2; 223:21-25; 224:1-2; 224:16-17]

=

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>If the square foot mesh area produced by the cone formula for lateral surface area is held constant at 500 square feet for the Crum Trawl (Exhibit 3) and the stretch mesh length is utilized, then the actual mesh area contained in the trawl (at 478.69 square feet) would be reduced by approximately 50% or to 251.15 square feet of actual mesh area contained in a trawl by the following calculation:

formula reduces the actual open mesh area which could be physically contained in the trawl to 355 square feet in order to meet the State's formula calculated area of 500 square feet. (T.66:1-25; 67:1).

It is also interesting to note (as was brought out in the testimony) that acceptance of the argument by the Appellants would limit the actual mesh area physically contained in a shrimpers trawl to between approximately 250 square feet and 350 square feet while a seine fisherman fishing in the same waters would be allowed by each of their arguments 500 square feet of actual open mesh area to be contained in his net. (T. 152:18-25; 153:1-4). Certainly, that was not the intent of the Amendment. In re: Advisory Opinion to the Governor, infra. at 965.

To allow such would constitute a misrepresentation to the people of this State when compared with the material and information provided to them to secure the signatures on the petition for this initiative and to vote for the Amendment once on the ballot. (Def. F.C.A. Ex. 4, T. 273:8-25; 274:1-21). Since the F.C.A. introduced the documentation as evidence of the frame of mind or intent of the voters in passing the amendment, the result of Defendants' arguments would therefore also be contrary to that intent or frame of mind of the voters. (F.C.A. Ex. 4; T. 273:8-25; 274:1-21; 284:7-12).

The Florida Supreme Court has consistently held that, "the fundamental purpose in construing a constitutional provision is to ascertain and give effect to the intent of the framers and

the people who adopted it." <u>City of Jacksonville v. Continental</u> <u>Can Company</u>, 151 So. 488, 489 (Fla. 1933). See also, in re: <u>Advisory Opinion to Governor</u>, 374 So.2d 959, 965 (Fla. 1979) ("the Court must give provisions a reasonable meaning, tending to fulfill, not frustrate, the intent of the framers and adopters."). The intent of the framers and adopters must be given primary consideration, and strict interpretations are forbidden if such interpretations would impose an effect never intended by the adoption of the Constitutional provision. <u>Continental Can</u>, supra.

First, the F.C.A. Exhibit "The Constitutional Amendment" dated June 4, 1993 is replete with terminology that clearly and specifically represents that the effect, meaning and intent of the Amendment is to limit the size of the shrimp trawls to be used within three miles of shore to an actual 500 square feet, not 500 square feet of mesh area as calculated by a formula which through a different construction by the Appellants would reduce the mesh size actually allowed to be contained in the trawl to 251 or 355 The Marine Fisheries (Def. F.C.A. Ex. 4). square feet. Commission even states Plaintiffs' position on this in its Brief, "The Constitutional Amendment, in clear language, limits to-wit: the size of nets in the near shore and inshore waters of Florida to 500 square feet or less." (Brief of Appellant (State) p. 16).

Second, the exhibit demonstrates by itself the "will of the voters" as represented by F.C.A. not to prohibit or eliminate directly or indirectly, economically or functional the commercial harvesting of shrimp by the smaller trawlers in near shore and

inshore Florida waters with trawls which as set out above contain no greater than 500 feet of open mesh square foot area. (Def. F.C.A. Ex. 4, T. 284:5-12). Some of this language is set forth below:

#### KEY ELEMENTS OF CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT

.Prohibits the use of other nets with greater than 500 square feet of mesh area in near shore and inshore waters. This forces <u>LARGE</u> shrimp trawlers and purse seines out of inshore bays and estuaries . . . (Def, Ex. 4, p.1).

(Thus the smaller shrimp trawlers would not be forced out - just the large ones which have frequently shrimped in that area.

#### WHAT IT DOES NOT DO

.Does not prohibit commercial harvest with alternative gear. (Def. Ex. 4, p.2).

(Since alternative gear, ie. smaller trawl nets<sup>3</sup> would only be required by the Amendment in near shore and inshore waters, this statement would logically apply to not prohibit commercial harvest by shrimpers in inshore and near shore waters.)

.It would allow the use of up to two of the smaller nets if fishing from a vessel. (Def. Ex. 4, p. 5).

(Shrimping can hardly be characterized as a recreation activity. The reference in the language must be construed to mean commercial harvesting operations.)

.The prohibition on the use of nets greater than 500 square feet of mesh area in near

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>See page 6. of Def. Ex. 4: "In addition to simply using smaller trawls . . . there are <u>other</u> alternative nets . . ."

shore and inshore waters will force large shrimp trawls . . . out of Florida's inshore bays . . . (Def. Ex 4, p. 4).

There is no language in the document dictating that the present method of commercial harvesting of shrimp must be changed, or eliminated; only that net sizes to be used within three miles of shore would be reduced to 500 square feet. This would allow the smaller inshore boats to continue to commercially harvest shrimp with smaller nets where they traditionally have harvested while forcing the larger trawlers with their commensurately larger trawls and extended range to stay in the outside waters beyond three miles.

The language in the Constitutional Amendment and the ballot summary also reflect the intent of the voters to limit rather than prohibit shrimp trawlers in inshore waters. (Article 16, Section (1)(b)(2) and Ballot Summary). One would reasonably expect that on a subject of this importance, if the commercial harvest by shrimp trawls was intended to be prohibited within three miles - it would have been specifically stated as was done with respect to the prohibition on gill nets.

The legal construction principle of "Expressio unius est exclulsio alterius" produces the positive will of the people with regard to commercial harvest by shrimp trawlers when the language of the Amendment and the position paper of F.C.A. (Def. Ex. 4) are examined together, to wit: That non-entangling nets such as a trawl containing webbing or mesh in sizes now limited to 500 square feet can still be fished by the same methods within three miles and

that prohibiting commercial harvesting by the smaller trawlers with these smaller trawls is not necessary to "protect saltwater finfish, shellfish and other marine animals from unnecessary killing, overfishing and waste." (Article X, Section 16 (a); Def. Ex. 4).

The greatly reduced amount of mesh sizes that shrimpers would be limited to place in their nets under Defendant's arguments render them commercially unfeasible and functionally would inoperative. (T. 75:17-24; 76:9-14; 97:18-21; 183:5-12; 189:9-In the tests made, nets of the maximum size that would be 17). allowed under the Defendants' arguments were constructed and pulled along the side of and at the same time as the Golden-Crum net. (T. 73:25; 74:1-13; 74:21-25; 74:14-20; 75:17-24; 76:9-14).The results proved, as had been testified to by many witnesses, that the nets were not commercially feasible and that the bag of the larger of the two (State's argument) could barely be brought to the rail of the boat from the outrigger in calm waters to dump the (T. 75:17-24; 76:9-14; 97:18-21; 162:12-13, 21-22; catch. 169:13-19; 183:5-12; 189:9-17).

By contrast, actual use of the Golden-Crum net before the Amendment and by many after the Amendment has demonstrated that although it represents a significant reduction in the customary size of trawls [Pl. Ex. 12, T. 46:5-6; 54:2-4; 54:10-11; 93:1-14] (especially of the larger trawls) previously fished inside of the three miles, it is just big enough to be both commercially feasible and functional to the smaller trawlers. (T. 36:25, 37:1-9; 73:1-

25). The only testimony of expert witnesses in the industry with the proper experience and background to make conclusions as to commercial and functional viability was consistent with the tests made on the nets. (T. 36:25; 37:1-9; 73:1-25; 162:12-13, 21-22; 169:1-12; 183:5-12).

This evidence was relevant and properly considered as extrinsic evidence of one of a number of factors used by the Court to examine the effect of the Plaintiffs' and Defendants' proposals as compared with the intent or lack thereof of the Amendment. <u>City</u> <u>of Jacksonville v. Continental Can Co.</u>, supra and <u>Plante v.</u> <u>Smathers</u>, 372 So2d 933 (Fla. 1979).

Finally, the Appellants have started almost every argument in this case with the reference to the will of the people as expressed by the Amendment in a majority of 72% of those voting. (Brief of Appellants, p.1). However, it is the Plaintiffs in this case and their net which are squarely within the will of those 72% of the voters under the language and intent of the Amendment. The Golden-Crum trawl logically produces less than 500 feet of formula calculated square foot open mesh area because it has less than 500 square feet of mesh physically contained in it and it significantly limits rather than eliminates commercial trawling in near shore and inshore waters. (Def. Ex. 12 & 16; T. 46:5-6; 54:2-4; 54:10-11; 93:1-14).

The Defendants' arguments admittedly produce a trawl that would be limited to actually containing between approximately 250 to 350 square feet of open mesh and which would eliminate inshore

and near shore commercial trawling. As evidenced in the Brief of Appellees/Plaintiffs above, this was not the will of the people. The State Marine Fisheries Commission and the F.C.A. are own their own mission herein which may or may not be righteous, but nevertheless cannot be said to be advanced under the cloak of authority of Article X, Section 16.

11. IF THE COURT REJECTS THE CONVERSION FACTOR ARGUED BY THE PLAINTIFF AND ACCEPTED BY THE TRIAL COURT OF 1/2 OR .50 TO ARRIVE AT THE OPEN MESH SLANT HEIGHT LENGTH OF THE TRAWL AND ACCEPTS EITHER OF APPELLANTS ARGUMENTS, THEN THE FOURTH SENTENCE OF (C)(2) MUST BE STRICKEN AS UNCONSTITUTIONAL IN ORDER TO PRESERVE THE INTENT OF THE LANGUAGE AND VOTERS OF THE AMENDMENT.

General principles of statutory construction are applicable to the construction of constitutional provisions. <u>Continental Can Co.</u>, 151 So. at 489. If two provisions are internally inconsistent

> .where the last clause of a statutory section is plainly inconsistent with the first part of the same section, and the first part is consistent with the clear policy and intent of the legislature, the last clause, if operative at all, will be so construed as to give it an effect consistent with the first part of the section and the policy it indicates.

<u>In re National Auto Underwriters Ass'n</u>, 184 So2d 901,902, (Fla. 1st DCA 1966), citing <u>Johnson v. State</u>, 157 Fla. 685, 27 So2d 276, 282 (Fla. 1946, <u>cert denied</u>, 329 U.S. 799, 1946. Moreover, the fundamental purpose in construing a constitutional provision is to ascertain and give effect to the intent of the framers who adopted it. <u>Continental Can Co.</u>, 151 So. at 489; <u>In re Advisory Opinion</u>

to the Governor, 374 So. 2d 959, 964 (Fla. 1979) ("the court must give provisions a reasonable meaning, tending to fulfill, not frustrate, the intent of the framers and adopters.")

Acceptance of the State's argument would limit the square foot area of the trawl to 355 square feet of open mesh actually contained in the net. Acceptance of the F.C.A.'s argument would limit the square foot area of the trawl to 251 square feet, actually contained int eh net. However, the intent of the voters and the express language of (b)(2) makes it clear that 500 square feet of open mesh area was to be the limitation necessary to protect the interest sought.

Furthermore, as referenced previously, fishermen using other non-entangling nets such as seines would be able to use 500 square feet of open mesh according to Appellants' construction while shrimp trawlers would be limited as above. The effect of their argument also prohibits rather than limits commercial harvesting by trawlers in inshore waters. As shrimping is not a recreational activity, the elimination of profits and commercially practical shrimp nets by reducing the size of the nets so far below that intended, effectively <u>eliminates</u> shrimp trawling by the smaller boats (25 - 50 feet in length).

# III.ANY RIGHTS OF THE F.C.A. TO EXAMINE, CROSS-<br/>EXAMINE OR CALL WITNESSES WAS EXERCISED,<br/>VOLUNTARILY WAIVED THROUGH AGREEMENT OR<br/>WAIVED THROUGH INACTION.

Mr. McCollough's argument concerning being refused by the court to examine or present witnesses is incorrect and must be

rejected.

Mr. McCollough, like all intervenors, agreed to present questions, evidence and witnesses through counsel for the parties to the case. This agreement was reiterated at the pretrial conference among all intervenors, the parties and the Court just before the trial. It is referenced by the Court at T.5 and T. 6.

At page T. 270 undersigned counsel references the agreement made by Mr. McCollough was that "they (intervenors) would only participate in the legal arguments, period." Mr. Mowrey, counsel for other intervenors, references the agreement at the trial to the effect that intervention was granted but would be limited to legal argument. (T. 270).

The Court further specifically restated the agreement on the record at T. 92:13-25:

. . . when we made this and there was not the record, let me just indicate that the ground rules that we set forth, and I thought we all agreed to this morning of the record, was that if there were any questions or objections, or what have you, they would be asked through Mr. Floyd or Mr. Glogau. That went for also Mr. McCollough and also for Mr. Shuler and Mr. Mowrey, too.

Because I feel like - - I'm not trying to limit Intervenors participation in this case at all, but there are intervenors and given the matter of the case, and there seems to be the - - no problem following that procedure.

Following this, neither Mr. McCollough nor the attorney for the State ever suggested that the agreement was otherwise than as referenced above nor did Mr. McCollough argue in his trial brief or post trial document submitted to the Court that he was denied any participation or right. (R. 448-457). The fact is that Mr. McCollough only requested to introduce one witness and this request was granted. (T. 8:13-20; 269:17-22). Subsequently, he was allowed to submit documentary evidence also. (T. 273:24-25; 274:1-4; 285:4-7). (Def. F.C.A. Ex.4).

Furthermore, Mr. McCollough exercised objections, making of motions and comments on evidence frequently. (T. 63:18-22; 102:3-10, 20-22; 130:16-18; 190:23-25; 191:1-4).

All of this was done before Mr. McCollough filed an answer or affirmative defenses for F.C.A. (R. 350-352) (filed on 3/27/95) and on the same day as F.C.A.'s filed a witness list. (R. 299-300), (3/24/95).

Just as the other intervenors who voluntarily limited the involvement in the trial in order to be allowed to intervene, F.C.A. voluntarily limited its involvement in the case. However, F.C.A. asked for and was granted its request to call Mr. Forgren. Then Mr. McCollough voluntarily decided to tender a memo from the F.C.A. (Def. F.C.A. Ex. 4) rather than submit other evidence. (T. 273:24-25; 174:1-4). Apparently, he decided he did not wish to call any other witnesses or present any further evidence. (T. 285). Pursuant to the agreement, he, like counsel for the other intervenors, actively participated in questioning through counsel for the parties. (T. 85:25; 86:1-25).

Accordingly, any right the F.C.A. may have had to examine, cross-examine or call witnesses or put on evidence was exercised voluntarily, waived through counsels' agreement on

intervenors' participation or, was waived through inaction. <u>United</u> <u>States Mineral Product Co. v. Waters</u>, 610 So2d 20, 21 (FLA 3 DCA 1992). See also <u>Coast Cities Coaches, Inc. v. Dade County</u>, 176 So2d 703, 706 (FLA. 1965).

#### CONCLUSION

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